TOWN OF LUDLOW, VT
SELECT BOARD
REGULAR MEETING
MONDAY, DECEMBER 2, 2024
6:00 PM

HEALD AUDITORIUM

Select Board Meeting Zoom Link- December 2, 2024

Meeting ID: 963 5236 4337
Passcode: 411479

One tap mobile
+13126266799,96352364337#,,,,411479# US (Chicago)
+16469313860,96352364337#,,,,411479# US

Dial by your location
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh212

AGENDA

1. Call to Order:

2. Consideration of any Changes, Additions or Removal to the Agenda:

3. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting(s):
a. November 4, 2024

4. Comments from Citizens:

5. Department Head Reports:
a. November 2024

6. Approval of Requests/ Licenses/ Permits:




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

SS4A Resolution Discussion:

Discussion Regarding the High School Building:

FY 26 Budget Discussion:

Municipal Manager Updates:

Other Business:

Possible Items for Next Meeting: (January 6. 2024)

Sign Warrant Orders:

Possible Executive Session/Personnel/Contracts/Legal Issues:

Adjourn:



PRELIMINARY MINUTES
TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

November 4, 2024

HEALD AUDITORIUM
6:00 P.M.

Meeting ID: 963 5236 4337
Passcode: 411479

One tap mobile
+13126266799, 963 5236 43374#,,,,*411479# US (Chicago)
+16469313860, 963 5236 43374,,,,*411479%# US

Dial by your location
https://zoom.us/u/abJ1grh212

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
Brett Sanderson, Chairman Justin Hyjek George Tucker, Jr.
Scott Baitz Noah Schmidt
STAFF PRESENT:
Brendan McNamara Ulla Cook Ben Whalen
OTHERS PRESENT:
Eric Alden Nick Miele Marissa Selig
Nick Gilberti Cherie Nicoll Ryan Silvestri
Jarrod Jowdy Julie Nicoll George Tucker
Heather Kelly Logan Nicoll Sherry Tucker
Jay Lushinks Alice Nitka Elijah Webster
Judy Lushinks Charlie Rimer Landon Wheeler
Michael Messer Bruce Schmidt

1. CALL TO ORDER

A.  Brett Sanderson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. He then led the meeting in the Pledge of
Allegiance.

2. CONSIDERATION OF ANY CHANGES. ADDITIONS OR REMOVALS TO THE AGENDA

A. Brendan McNamara advised that a change is needed to include approval of Application for Loan
forgiveness for Mascoma Bank in the amount of $88,849.31. It will be item 12B.
B. MOTION by Noah Schmidt and seconded by George Tucker, Jr. to include Item12B

Application for Loan Forgiveness for Mascoma Bank. Motion passed unanimously.




Board of Selectmen November 4, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

3. APPROVE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

A.  Brett Sanderson advised that the minutes to be approved are for the regnlar meeting of October 21,
2024:
B. MOTION by Noah Schmidt and seconded by George Tucker, Jr. to approve the minutes

from the regular meeting of October 21. 2024 as presented. Motion passed unanimously.

4. COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS

A. There were none.

5. DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS — OCTOBER 2024

A. There was no discussion

6. APPROVAL OF REQUESTS/LICENSES/PERMITS

A. There were none.

7. DORSEY PARK PLAYGROUND GRANT DISCUSSION:

A Brendan McNamara said that Nick Miele and Cherie Nicoll are here to discuss applying for a grant
to upgrade the playground at Dorsey Park.

B. Nick Miele said this would not be from the ARPA funds. We have done the skate park and now
will be doing the tennis courts. This would be the next step. There are funds available from the
Clean Water funds. The funds would be a 50/50 match. The town would have to pay the entire
bill and would be reimbursed at 50%. The pre-application is due this coming December and the
final application is due January 2025 with completion in June 2026 — a 2-year budget span. The
estimate is $200,000, but it would probably be less. We can have other contractors do the
surfacing and site work. We currently have $57,750 in the Recreation Facilities fund. We can use
donations toward our share of the payment. Other towns, including Burlington have applied for
and received grants for playgrounds. There is also $60,000 remaining from the ARPA funds.

C. Scott Baitz said that we do have the funds for money upfront.

D. Brendan McNamara said that this is worth pursuing, of the $200,000, our share would be
$100,000.

E. Noah Schmidt asked the status of the playground and if it can wait another 2 years.

F. Nick Miele said absolutely. It does have to go out to bid and he will reach out to other companies
for estimates.

G. Noah Schmidt asked if there is enough space for a $200,000 project.

H. Nick Miele said the equipment is about $100,000, installation about $41,000 and freight $8,500.

L. Scott Baitz said they should move forward with the application, but he would like a Plan B for if
we did not receive the grant.

J. Noah Schmidt asked if any other project would fit this.

K. Nick Miele said this is the biggest. He would also like to have a press box at Dorsey for storage.

The Skate Park cost was $235,000 and about $200,000 for the tennis courts.



Board of Selectmen November 4, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

czg ¢

™

RO

Bruce Schmidt noted that the application references that the recreation spaces would be open in
perpetuity. With the floods we have had, the park would still have to be there.

Noah Schmidt said with the work done at the skate park, Dorsey should be ok.

Scott Baitz said we need to do this.

Brendan McNamara said there is $57,000 in the Recreation Capital account. We put in about
$25,000 3 years ago and for the last 2 years about $10,000 each.

Brendan McNamara said we have done the skate park and tennis courts. We have done work on
the secondary field at Pullinen. This will not deplete the Capital Fund and there are lots of
recreation spaces in Ludlow. West Hill — in his opinion — should be next in line for improvements.
He does not see this as handcuffing us. He said the ARPA funds must be appropriated by the end
of the year and expended by 2026. He recommends that this board ask Nick Miele and Cherry
Nicoell to move forward with the grant application process. It would benefit the town.

Judy Lushinks asked if it would be handi-cap accessible.

Brendan McNamara said everything will be ADA compliant.

Justin Hyjek asked Nick Miele if the Recreation Department be asking the Board to increase the
amount put in the budget for FY2026.

MOTION by Noah Schmidt and seconded bv Scott Baitz to proceed with the application
process for the grant for $200,000 for the Dorsey Park Playground. Motion passed
unanimously.

8. DISCUSS AND POSSIBLY APPROVE HOLIDAY PARTY

Brendan McNamara said he is asked for board consensus to proceed with soliciting bids for the
Holiday Party. Last year, the party was well attended and the cost was about $5,000.
MOTION bv George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Noah Schmidt to move forward with
solicitation of bids for the Holiday Party. Motion passed unanimously.

9. DISCUSSION REGARDING RENTAL REGISTRY

A,

Brendan McNamara said that at last month’s meeting they started discussion about the fire at the
Trailside Condos and we received a lot of feedback from the public. In the past, the board decided
not to move forward with a Rental Registry. It is now our due diligence to revisit this. It is not
about town oversight of property owners, not about money. It is about life saving issues. Safety
for the community, our guests, and our mutual aid personnel. We need to take a second look at it.
It is our job to do that. It is not regulatory, not about stopping people from renting out their
properties. It a unit is permitted for 8 people; they can rent to 8 people. They need to do it
correctly, by codes and standards. Renters expect safety in the units. We will not be making any
decisions tonight and this is not for this winter’s season. He said that Landon Wheeler and Ben
Whelan are here to answer questions. He asked Landon Wheeler what he is seeing for Ludlow
rentals — we regard to over-capacity and non-conformance in Ludlow rentals.

Landon Wheeler said the Division of Fire Safety utilizes outside design and inspections and not
just on rentals — also for uses where they should not be. We don’t differentiate between Long- and
Short-Term rentals. If there are glaring items, we can search online. We look for available rentals
and Ludlow has 1,000s both long and short term. A big trigger is overpopulation in units which
increases risks. He stated that the Trailside condos have life safety equipment that worked, the fire
rated separation walls worked. The windows and sprinklers worked. There were other
contributing factors in this case. In one year (10 months), we have had over 500 interactions in



Board of Selectmen November 4, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

o0

:—l

Z 5

Ludlow. In a 3-year period, between 2,400 and 2,500 interactions. We spend a considerable
amount of time in Ludlow.

Noah Schmidt asked What if a person changes a house from a single-family dwelling into a rental.
Landon Wheeler said if a dwelling is rented for ONE day, it becomes a public building and is
subject to 20VSA§173 and all codes and standards must be met and the owner is liable. In an
owner-occupied single-family dwelling, there is not outside inspection and the builder may not
know the codes. Vermont has had codes over 70 years and they are changed over time and
reviewed every 3 years. We are currently working to adopt the 2021 cycle (working under the
2015.) He added that there is minimal change between 2015 and 2021. The more people that are
in a unit, the higher the risk. The goal of the Division of Fire Safety is to make sure inspections
are done on buildings with the highest risk and that is where people sleep. And most of them are
single family, owner occupied

Brett Sanderson asked how this can be controlled.

Landon Wheeler we cannot inundate the Division of Fire Safety as a whole. The town and its
zoning regulations help and there can be zoning violations. We need to educate the public, some
of the owners do not know they are breaking the law. When education fails, enforcement takes
over. But we start with public education first. It also helps build relationships. We hope to
educate the owner associations with information and outreach. We provide a check list for 8 or
less occupancy units. For more than 8, it must have a change of use with the state and the zoning
office. There are 62 towns and we provide code information sheets at the town offices. If a unit is
rented for higher occupancy, we can do site inspections. In Ludlow, there are over 100 Purchase
and Sales inspections/year. But, when inspected, most of the units are empty, but we can judge
how it may be configured. He added that not every rental registry has the same objectives and you
must figure out why you want a rental registry. It is not our intent to have rental registries dictate
Division of Fire Safety inspections — we cannot facilitate that. We are working on outreach and
ask Ludlow to help us distribute the information.

Brett Sanderson said some of the renters are from out-of-state and say they rent to 8 people, but
have no idea how many people show up at the unit. They absorb the liability.

Noah Schmidt asked when the Division of Fire Safety finds violations, how do the people react?
Landon Wheeler said there are all ranges of responses, from upset because it will cost them money
by limiting the load to some happy and thankful to know. There are success stories. Some people
only want to use it as a business, while others may have different reasons.

Ben Whalen said his objective is for Life Safety for people in the community. We need to make
sure, if we start a registry, what our purpose is. He has seen units that sleep 8, with occupancies of
12 -16-24, windowless bedrooms, and beds in closets. Ludlow’s population increases to as many
as 40,000 during holiday weeks. Fire and Life Safety are the most important. We have a good
relationship with Division of Fire Safety. Mike Messer has included me on some inspections and |
will be able to keep an eye on certain locations.

Noah Schmidt said safety is a big concern. Are we welcoming visitors to the community and doing
our best to make sure they are safe. There are unsafe places and what would you like to see us do.
Ben Whalen said we will distribute the check list from the Division of Fire Safety. We have been
receiving phone calls at the Fire Station from people asking the process. There are changes of use,
what is the intent of the code. We will work with the public. If people register with the town, they
should add the number of people on the form for 8 or less. But others may increase the number,
saying 8 while there are 12 beds. Some people are forthcoming and honest, but that is not always
the case. We can give people the Division of Fire Safety Self-Assessment check list. DFS does
not have the staff to do yearly inspections.

Scott Baitz asked if units with occupancies of 9 to 16 must have sprinklers

Landon Wheeler said the code does say sprinklers but there are variables — sprinklers are not
suitable for every house. As of the 2015 codes, change of use from single family to



Board of Selectmen November 4, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

©

w RO

c

£ <

BB.

cC
DD.

Room/Lodging must comply with the new standards. In Ludlow, the variables may include
stories, type of occupancy and level below grade. And these are not uncommon to find in Ludlow.
There is a variance process and if there is a reason not to comply, they must provide an equivalent
alternative. Smoke and CO; detectors are most required.

Scott Baitz said that 9 to 16 are the biggest problem in Ludlow and all surrounding towns. They
are not overly burdensome and there are a lot over 16 and they are the highest priority once
identified.

Landon Wheeler said we make every effort to inspect.

Scott Baitz asked with what authority.

Landon Wheeler said as soon as a building is rented for one day, it becomes a public building. We
have jurisdiction to inspect them.

Justin Hyjek said that we did have a committee, but it was decided not to move forward. He asked
Ben Whalen if he thought we should start another committee and would he participate.

Ben Whalen said yes, and yes.

Landon Wheeler said he would also participate, and it is not a waste of his time. He added that he
will be moving to another position and there will be someone new replacing him. We would
support you. We are not looking to create a conflict — state vs. local ordinances.

George Tucker, Jr. asked if Chief Whalen can do the inspections.

Landon Wheeler said there are 11 towns in Vermont with municipal agreements to complete tasks
— some with full and others not. Brattleboro has limited inspections. A municipal agreement
would be available to Ludlow, but there is a threshold — you must have adequate staff and training.
Noah Schmidt asked if the check list is adequate. A room could have an egress window, but there
is a bed in front of it.

Landon Wheeler said we cannot capture 100%, but we can capture intent - good life safety items.
There is a complaint process and we respond within 72 hours. Some of the rental slips are filled
out, but are still not compliant. We can have a memorandum of understanding (MOU). Ludlow
has a lot of infrastructure. An inspection takes 3 hours — 1 for the process, 1 for travel and 1 for
paperwork. The best inspector does about 500 inspections per year and a new inspector about 100.
It takes about 5 years to become comfortable. He does not encourage Ludlow to put this on the
fire chief without support. He said it takes about 3 to 5 years and the schooling is not the easiest to
get. We have trailing expectations and certifications. You just cannot throw someone into the job.
He said that Division of Fire Safety cannot do all of Ludlow. Using all 27 fire Marshalls for one
year won’t accomplish all inspections in Ludlow. 20VSA§173 sets the standards.

Noah Schmidt said we know we have a lot of illegal units — what is the town’s liability.

Landon Wheeler said he can’t comment on that —he would have to get legal advice. The owners
and property managers are liable. If people get hurt, we can all end up in court. He said there are
62 towns, self-funded agencies, permit fees and staffing challenges. Over the past 18 years, DFS
has doubled its staff. We have enforcement capabilities if educations fail

Brendan McNamara said we will be having a joint meeting of the Select board, Trustees and
Planning Commission on Tuesday, November 19" at 5:30 p.m.

Noah Schmidt said that has a good model for fire safety.

Landon Wheeler said that he has reviewed all the Short-Term rental registries. You must make
sure it fits your objective. Copying and pasting does not always meet the objectives.

10. FY2026 BUDGET DISCUSSION — FIRE TRUCK PURCHASE OPTIONS

A.
B.

Brendan McNamara said we will start the budget process within the next 2 weeks.
Brett Sanderson said we usually have a couple of Mondays per month



Board of Selectmen November 4, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

= omo mo

=

o ZErwm

=

Brendan McNamara said he will put out dates. He said that 2 years ago we started to talk about
replacing a fire truck — but that was before last year’s flood. Chief Whalen will outline the process
tonight, but there will not be a decision tonight.
Ben Whalen said Engine 3, Tower 1 and a Utility need to be replaced. He is setting up a Capital
Plan through 2060 We try to replace vehicles every 20 years, but OSHA recommends 15 years.
Tower 1 and the tanker are both 25 years old. The Engine 3 is 20 years old. The lead time for
ordering and delivery of and engine is 36 to 42 months and 44+ months for a tower. He said that
engine #3 is a 2004 and the maintenance costs have been over budget for several years. We are
having pump issues — we do maintenance on it. It is not great to wonder if the pump will work.
Engine #3 and the tower have been well maintained. Maintenance on the tower is about $30,000
per year. The manufacturer of the chassis is no longer in business and it is harder to get parts.
Newer vehicles have more modern parts and are safer. The utility vehicle — 20 year old diesel
pickup. Highway said they could use it. We can use the equipment capital fund. Our options are:
Purchase the engine and tower this coming fiscal year — you save 5% if you do buy them together
and pay at the time of purchase — a 5% payback with simple interest per day - $479 - $500 per day
until delivery. Total saving between $500,000 and $540,000. Pump delivery is 36 months.

MSRP for the Engine is $1,457,844

MSRP for the Tower is $2,589.195

MSRP Total $4,046,039

5% savings for purchase of both is 1.4 - $1,283,000

5% savings for purchase of both is 2.5 $2,215,000

The cost increases effective 2/1/2025 is 5%

If purchased before 2/1/2025 $116,624

Pre-buy payback on MSRP $3,498,000
Pre-buy payback on MSRP $2,988,416
After 2/1  Increase of $156,000+

Without use if Equipment fund - $450,000 cash

Expected trade-in for both $50,000
Justin Hyjek asked if purchase before 2/1/2025 is possible
Brendan McNamara said he does not know and needs to talk to Ulla Cook and the board. It is
possible, but we need a bit more group discussion.
Justin Hyjek said we should explore more moving forward — it’s a no-brainer.
Ben Whalen said transparency is a key part. This was brought up before the flood last year. We
need good vehicles for another 20 — 25 years and these suit Ludlow’s needs.
Brendan McNamara said it would be voted on at town meeting in March. We could explore if they
would be willing to hold the increase off until after town meeting.
Ben Whalen said if we can buy before 2/1 — the price would be $2,988,416, but after 2/1 would
be$3,145,252.
Ben Whalen said he will try to negotiate a deferred price increase.
Brendan McNamara said you can only get bonds at certain times, we may have to get a loan.
Noah Schmidt said they have had a Local Options tax discussion
Brendan McNamara with the ambulance purchase, we had a deal that if it did not pass at town
meeting, we would be to cancel.
Ben Whalen said they will not accept the order until we give them the 5%. He said he will not
place an order until we are ready. If delivery is late, we still get interest.
Noah Schmidt asked how specific this is.



Board of Selectmen November 4, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

na

Ben Whalen said the dealers do have back logs. When they purchased for Chester. It was 2 years
for the engine and 2 % to 3 years for the tank. The delivery times are pretty accurate. If they are
ready early, they will stop incurring maintenance He said the tower will be lower — from 102’ to
95°. Itis super-heavy. It will be more maneuverable and fit in more places. He said he is happy
with the vehicles as specified out and they will serve Ludlow for 2 to 3 decades.

Logan Nicoll asked the balance in the fire equipment fund.

Ben Whalen said about $30,000. We have been underfunded for years. He said that moving
forward, with either a bond or loan, the people here are paying for it. If you extend out the loan
terms, it will spread the payments out over tie. The aim is to not have all the vehicles need to be
replaced at the same time. The Rescue vehicle we have is 10 years old and in 7 years we should
order its replacement. He added that they also must replace radios through the budget

11. OKEMO SEASONAL UPDATE

A.

Bruce Schmidt said that Okemo had a strong summer, with increased visits over August-
September and October. He said that they ended on Indigenous Peoples” Day weekend — which
was very strong with the exception on Sunday and Monday when it rained. He said that over the
summer, we put a new floor at the Clock Tower, put new siding on the Sugar House, painted, put
expanded snow-making on Timberline. We worked with Efficiency Vermont on 15 new low
energy snow guns, added 5 fan guns (with incorporated compressors.) He said that South Face
Village (not part of Okemo but we provide snow making) added a new trail down to Okemo called
Rossi’s Run, we added a new 100 carpet at Clock Tower and extended the carpet at Jackson Gore.
Snow Tubing will be coming back to Jackson Gore, but for this year, we will discontinue ice
skating. As it is hard to keep the ice with the weather. We have added to food and beverage. This
year, we have started a new program MyEpicgear that is a subscription service for use of skis,
boards and boots. This is not a rental program. Members pay each time they use the equipment
and 12 resorts are now making it available. We had 6 weddings this summer, with 2 at the summit
where we put chips down. Our focus is to start snowmaking as soon as it gets cold. We are ready
to go and hope to open before Thanksgiving. So far, 65 to 68% of staff have returned and housing
is a similar footprint to last year. He thanked the town manager and department heads and boards
for paving the town’s portion of the Access Road and for our relationship with Stearns’ Pit.

Brett Sanderson asked for a moment of silence for the passing of Stu Schmidt — Bruce’s father. He
recalled that Mr. Schmidt had taught Drivers’ Ed and had a big impact on Ludlow.

12. MUNICIPAL MANAGER UPDATES

A.

Spillways
i. Brendan McNamara said that said the work by Markowsky Excavating for spillways for

Dams 3 and 5 is basically done
Major Dam Project
i. Brendan McNamara said that the engineering and design phases are being done by Dubois
and King for 5 dams. He met with NCRS onsite. Scope of work for the project will take 6 to
10 years. Engineering is ongoing. They are test drilling. This project is fully funded.
Local Options Tax Committee
i. Brendan McNamara said there was a forum 2 weeks ago and the committee explained the
benefits to the town. It was well attended and we received great feedback. We will have




Board of Selectmen November 4, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

another public forum after the new year and possibly vote at town meeting. We are asking
people to ask people who attended the forum about any questions they have.
D. Merger Committee for Town and Village
i. Brendan McNamara said the committee completed a draft charter and submitted it to the
town attorney as well as department chairs. We will sit down with boards and town clerk to
discuss. There is not a huge delineation from the way we operate. A draft will be made
available to the public. We may be able to vote on it at Town Meeting in March. If it passes
the town vote, it will be sent to the State for approval.
E. Pre-Winter Meeting with John Neal from Okemo
i. Brendan McNamara said John Neal met with him, Chief Billings and Mary Mansino for a
pre-winter season meeting. We work well together
F. Mill Street
i. Brendan McNamara said that Mill Street opened on October 11%.
G. Joint Board Meeting/Select Board/Trustees/Planning Commission
i. Brendan McNamara said that there will be a joint meeting on November 19™ at 5:30 p.m.

12B. APPLICATION FOR LOAN FORGIVENESS

A. Brendan McNamara said that is for forgiveness of after flood eligible interest in the amount of
$88,849.31,

B. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Scott Baitz to Approval for the application
of loan forgiveness on Flood Recovery Loan with Mascoma Bank in the amount of

$88.849.31. Motion passed unanimously

13. OTHER BUSINESS

A.  Voting tomorrow from 10:00 a.m. to 7 p.m. Heald Auditorium

14. POSSIBLE AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING (DECEMBER 2. 2024)

A.  Brett Sanderson said the next meeting would be December 2, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. and on the agenda:
i. Rental registry

15. SIGN WARRANT ORDERS

A.  Brett Sanderson said that warrant orders have been signed.

16. POSSIBLE EXECUTIVE SESSION/PERSONNEL//LEGAL ISSUES

A.  Brendan McNamara said that an Executive Session is needed for personnel.

B. MOTION by George Tucker. Jr. and seconded by Noah Schmidt to move into Executive
Session for personnel/legal matters. Motion passed unanimously.

C. Board entered Executive session at 7:47 p.m.




Board of Selectmen November 4, 2024
Preliminary Meeting Minutes

D. MOTION by Noah Schmidt and seconded by George Tucker, Jr. to exit Executive Session.
Motion passed unanimously.

E. Board exited Executive Session at 8:20 p.m.
F. No action taken.
17. ADJOURN

A MOTION by Noah Schmidt and seconded by Scott Baitz to adjourn. Motion passed
unanimously.
B. Meeting adjourned at 8:21 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisha Klaiber

Brett Sanderson, Chairman Noah Schmidt

Scott Baitz George Tucker, Jr. )

Justin Hyjek



SELECT BOARD, VILLAGE TRUSTEES AND PLANNING COMMISSION
TUESDAY, November 19, 2024
5:30 P.M.
Special Meeting
HEALD AUDITORIUM
Zoom Link: Planning Commission Agenda and Docs — November 19, 2024

Meeting ID: 999 9677 06407
Passcode: 428636

SELECT BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT

Brett Sanderson, Chairman Justin Hyjek George Tucker, Jr.
Scott Baitz Noah Schmidt

TRUSTEES PRESENT:

Justin Hyjek, Vice Chairman Julie Nicoll

TRUSTEES ABSENT:

Bob Brandt, Chairman

STAFF:

Brendan McNamara Jarrod Jowdy Fire Chief Ben Whalen
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:

Terry Carter Jean Strong

Judy Pullinen Ted Stryhas

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT:

Ryan Silvestri

OTHERS PRESENT:

Eric Alden Sal Marattoli Jason Rasmussen

Allison Hopkins Steve Meyers Serenity Wolf

Jay Lushinks Alice Nitka Brian

Judy Luchinks Sarah

I. Call To Order

1. Brett Sanderson opened the meeting at 5:36 p.m. He opened with the Pledge of Allegiance.
¢ All Select Board members present.
e Trustees - Bob Brandt absent.
e Planning Commission - Ryan Silvestri absent



Select Board, Village of Ludlow Board of Trustees and Planning Commission November 19, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 2 of 7

II. Consideration of any Changes. Additions or Removals to the Agenda

1.

Brett Sanderson advised that no changes were needed

1II. Short Term Rental Regulation: Planning Commission will present their researched approach

to this issue

1.

Terry Carter said that she had sent copies of the results of the survey that the Planning
Commission had done in the past. A committee had been formed to research a Short Term
Rental Registry and when present to the boards, those regulations were not passes. Considering
the recent fire at Trailside, this issue has resurfaced. The Planning Commission has been
working with the Regional Planning Commission. Regarding the survey that was done, post
cards were sent to voters in the village and the survey was posted on the town website. We
received 297 responses. Of those responses, 82% were from homeowners, 18% from renters and
35% part time or non-residents. The survey consisted of these questions:

a. What effect do short term rentals have on the Village of Ludlow?
i. 20% positive
ii. 50%+ negative
1il. Less than 5% - no effect
iv. Less than 20% - not sure
V. Less than 5% - no opinion

b. Should Ludlow establish a registry for short-term rentals?
i Slightly under 60% - yes

ii. 20%+ -no

iii. 10%+ - not sure

iv. About 5% - no opinion

c. If yes, should Ludlow charge an annual fee to register a short-term rental?

i. About 82% said yes

ii. Just under 10% said no

fii. Just under 10% said not sure

iv. About 1% said no opinion

Terry Carter continued and asked the boards if they want the Planning Commission to move
forward with looking at a Short Term Rental Registry? She said someone suggested lock-
boxes, and the Fire Marshall said that wasn’t necessary. There would be no restrictions on
Long Term rentals. Rentals with over 8 occupants would have special regulations. Short term
rentals are commercial businesses and average about $570/night. There are fewer homes left in
Vermont and there have been changes in the residency numbers. She would rather see short
term rental registry fees than increases in taxes.

Judy Pullinen said that the ideas presented to the boards by the Planning Commission were a
draft and the Planning Commission is willing to change them. It is important to have
regulations.

Noah Schmidt said it is important to look at what the goal is - safety, character of the area, tax
revenue? This seems to focus on what the renters can’t do - make noise - what about the
homeowners. It should be the same for all. We need to make sure that people are safe.

Brett Sanderson said this is about Safety and regulations are the best way to achieve that. We
can limit the penalties. Units should be inspected by the Fire Marshall every 2 years to
ascertain that the fire systems are working properly.

Noah Schmidt said that Granicus does that scan through listings and larger occupancy numbers
are flagged and cross-referenced with town records. For occupancies of over 8, we may want



Select Board, Village of Ludlow Board of Trustees and Planning Commission November 19, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 3 of 7

11.
12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

the fire Marshall to inspect. We can have people self-certify. Safety is first. There are ways to
incorporate revenue into housing.

Terry Carter said that other towns have the Fire Marshal inspect every 4 years. She asked Chief
Whalen if he could do the inspections.

Ben Whalen said that at this time, Ludlow does not have a memorandum of understanding with
the state. There is a potential for that in the future.

George Tucker said that the bigger problem is occupancies of 9 or more people.

Chief Whalen said there are filters for rentals of over 9 and there are about 1,000 in

Ludlow. There are several hundred rentals of 20+ persons. Occupancies of 8 or less, are less
risk; 9 - 16 more risk and over 16 people even more risk.

George Tucker, Jr. said that the unit at Trailside had 16 people. That is high risk.

Noah Schmidt said that Granicus said there were 800 - 1,200 STR in the town of Ludlow.
Steve Meyers asked if the boards have considered saying that rental units can ‘t have
fireplaces. He asked who would be responsible Air B&B, the rental agent or the owner. Would
the owners be responsible. What about Jackson Gore and Winter Place. They are all different
and it’s very complicated.

Scott Baitz said many people are converting wood fireplace to propane and electric. We don’t
have the right to tell people they can’t have fireplaces. He said that 700+ units have fireplaces.
Terry Carter asked if the boards want the Planning Commission to take another look at a Short
term rental registry.

Consensus of the boards was yes.

IV. Introduction of Mount Ascutney Regional Planning Commission: Housing Study

1.

Alison Hopkins said they have looked at existing conditions in Ludlow and projected housing
needs. She said that in 2022, there were 1,190 year round residents - 722 owner and 468 renters
with an average of 2.14 persons per unit.

Jason Rasmussen said that now, 84% are non-homesteaders. The key is affordability and
availability for year round occupancy. There is a lack of homes for the workforce. Of

this, 21% are short term rentals. He added that the number of persons 65+ is on the

increase. He said the data comes from VHFA. He said that the median household income in
Vermont is $49,213, Home cost is $420,833 and Affordable housing is $146,000. Median Rent
is $2,000 and affordable rent is $1,200. He said that Ludlow may be higher in housing costs
and lower in income . This is all using the 30% measurement. Ludlow is higher than the
Windsor County rates.

Steve Meyers asked about acreage costs.

Jason Rasmussen said they did not look at that. He said that VT Act 47 - The Home Act -
allows for municipalities to change density, lot size parking. Ludlow has done this including
the new Village Residential 2 District, and Senior housing in all districts.

Terry Carter said that the new Village Plan that was effective 9/23/2024 also allows duplexes in
all districts including the Preservation district. 50%+ of the homes in Ludlow are single family
homes.

Jason Rasmussen said that the data demonstrates that we have problems. In 2023, we hired the
SE Group to do a sustainability analysis and a mapping tool. This will indicate where housing
development is best suited based on infrastructure: water, sewer, sidewalks and where there are
environmental constraints: floodways, river corridors, conservation areas, and steep slopes. We
need jobs and public transportation. We need affordable rental units for the work force. He
said that the State also passed ACT 181. This act grants the Vermont Housing and Conservation
Board an assignable right of first refusal for privately owned age-restricted properties and



Select Board, Village of Ludlow Board of Trustees and Planning Commission November 19, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 4 of 7

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

requires owners of privately owned age-restricted properties to provide notice of rent increases
and also required Regional Planning Commissions to update their plans and Land Use Maps.
We are working with the Windham and Windsor Housing Trust. The Village Center will get an
automatic designation in 2 year. The Regional plan is in place and will work with the towns on
their maps, including the surrounding areas. If those areas meet the requirements, they will get
the designation, which will also allow some ACT 250 exemptions. He said there are different
tiers: 1A - exempt, 1B - Ludlow is here. ACT 250 allows for affordable developments of 50
units on 10 acres or less. Towns have the choice of tiers. Tier 2 allow no ACT 250
exemptions.
Noah Schmidt asked if there are any specifics if Ludlow is facing a housing shortage because of
2nd homes.
Jason Rasmussen said there is no data, but he thinks this is mostly true. He added that there are
provisions in the Home Act or Act 181 that override town zoning regulations.
Alison Hopkins said we are developing tools to update the survey, and put an action plan
together.. We will create a local housing committee. We will look into rental rehabilitation and
have a guide to home sharing. We will research funding sources.
Jason Rasmussen added, economically, we need subsidies, look into town lands and tax credit
programs.
Noah Schmidt asked what is the best way to build more housing or deed restricted
developments.
Jason Rasmussen said developers always consider first if the project will make money. There
may be subsidies for building affordable housing. How to make this cost feasible: accessible
units, senior housing and smaller levels.
Eric Alden Comments

The state hasn’t invested in housing

Character of the town comes up often. Most people don’t know what it is

No one wants change

Vermont/Ludlow has an aging population

Vermont/Ludlow has a low median income

There are no jobs

The focus should be on building

You will not have work force housing without density

Housing, Families, Jobs

Don’t be afraid of Change
Justin Hyjek agreed with Mr. Alden. He said change is inevitable answer should not have knee-
jerk reactions to change. He added that the Character is “small town-ness.”

V. Neighborhood Development Areas — Zoning Requirements for the Application Mapping

1.

Jason Rasmussen said that Regional will be working with the Planning Commission to prepare
for the application. The Neighborhood Development Area program builds on this tradition by
providing special permit and tax incentives for communities and developers that commit to
building mixed-income housing within and adjacent to designated. The Neighborhood
Development Area designation encourages municipalities and/or developers to plan for new and
infill housing in the area within walking distance of its designated downtown, village center,
new town center, or within its designated growth center and incentivizes needed housing,
further supporting the commercial establishments in the designated centers. Areas eligible for
designation must be within a neighborhood planning area defined as an area surrounding an



Select Board, Village of Ludlow Board of Trustees and Planning Commission November 19, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 5 of 7

© 00 oL

15.
16.

17.
18.

19.

20.
21.

existing state designated area, extending a 1/4 mile from village centers, and new town centers,
and a 122 mile from downtowns (and areas within designated growth centers).
The Building Patterns
Jason Rasmussen said that The Building Patterns portion has a checklist of 10 items and to
qualify, a town must meet 8 and at this time, Ludlow does meet 8, but a few could be
strengthened. He said that it deals with density and setbacks.

Complete Streets
Jason Rasmussen said if the Village wants to apply for the Complete Streets, they need to
meet 5 of the 10 criteria. TIs it worth pursuing? This part includes:
Extending streets into new developments
Sidewalks
Water/Sewer
Narrower Streets
Underground utilities
Prohibiting Cul-de-sacs
Bike paths
e Landscaping
Terry Carter said the Planning Commission would have to change the Zoning Regulations
quickly in order to apply. It expires in 2027. It does suspend Act 250 within the % mile of the
village center. She asked the boards if they want the Planning Commission to pursue this.
Jason Rasmussen said why not. There Act 250 benefit exemptions, fee reductions and it opens
up the financing options.
Justin Hyjek said he does not like the idea of narrower streets or no cul-de-sacs.
Noah Schmidt said it says “narrow as possible.”
Jarrod Jowdy said we have to consider the EMS vehicles first.
George Tucker, Jr. asked what areas may this work for.
Terry Carter said Okemo Heights
George Tucker, Jr. said it is already hard to get up there with a fire truck.

. Justin Hyjek said we qualify for Building Patterns.
11.
12.
13.
14.

George Tucker, Jr. said we may be able to get 3 more without putting other things in jeopardy.
Justin Hyjek said who would enforce or facilitate it.

Terry Carter said it would go into the Zoning Regulations and then to the DRB.

Jason Rasmussen referred to the map and asked where and how they would put the new streets
- even with “narrow as possible.”

Noah Schmidt said we do want housing, but with the requirements, it is worth it

Jason Rasmussen said this would ease Act 250 and may open up financial opportunities for
housing. It may be worth pursuing.

Steve Meyers asked if this would be public or private.

Jason Rasmussen said a partnership of public and private. He added that the state would give
us the “sentences” to add to our zoning regulations. He said he thinks the Planning
Commission should move forward with Complete Streets.

Judy Pullinen said it requires sidewalks. That is not as hard as it seems. New developments
are required to put in sidewalks. We have regulations in place for bike. What about High or
Pleasant Streets?

Judy Lushinks said Pleasant Street is too narrow, particularly by the pedestrian bridge.

Judy Pullinen said she still thinks it’s possible.



Select Board, Village of Ludlow Board of Trustees and Planning Commission November 19, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 6 of 7

22. Justin Hyjek said we need to move forward. We should add underground utilities. We don’t
need another survey.
23. Terry Carter asked if the consensus is to move forward.

24. MOTION for the Trustees by Justin Hyjek and seconded Julie Nicoll to authorize the
Planning Commission to move forward to address the requirements for the Complete

Streets portion of the NDA. Motion passed unanimously..

25. MOTION for the Select Board by Noah Schmidt and seconded Scott Baitz to authorize
the Planning Commission to move forward to address the requirements for the Complete
Streets portion of the NDA. Motion passed unanimously.

26. Justin Hyjek asked if this includes Affordable Housing.

27. Jason Rasmussen said it is not in the by-laws.

28. Justin Hyjek asked if we can include it.

29. Jason Rasmussen said yes.

30. Noah Schmidt said not to limit it to affordable housing.

31. Steve Meyers said what does get built is the $600,000 home.

32. Justin Hyjek asked about State or federal lands?

33. Jason Rasmussen said what has been built in Windsor is the $500,000 unit.

34. Ted Stryhas said you can’t possible build for less than $500,000. You would need big
subsidies. Even $400,000 with a $50,000 median income is not reachable.

35. Justin Hyjek said we can try to support the Planning Commission.

36. Ted Stryhas said at this point in time, this is what we have. It’s common sense.

37. Jason Rasmussen said it will take multiple regulations and incentives, but you can at least try.

38. Eric Alden said affordable housing is built in other areas. If I build 10 units, 20% of them
must be affordable and the state determines which of those 10 will be the affordable ones. The
town can set the guidelines. It’s about density.

39. Terry Carter said the regulations already stipulate 15% must be affordable. It’s a state
requirement.

40. Jason Rasmussen said the Home Act has inclusionary zoning. In Ludlow, developments of 10
or more units, 15% of them must be affordable.

41. Judy Lushinks said at past meetings, no one mentioned the 15%.

VI Adjourn-

1. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Scott Baitz to adjourn this
meeting. Motion passed unanimously.
2. Meeting closed at 7:08 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Lisha Klaiber



Select Board, Village of Ludlow Board of Trustees and Planning Commission November 19, 2024
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 7 of 7

SELECT BOARD

Brett Sanderson, Chairman Noah Schmidt

Scott Baitz George Tucker, Jr.

Justin Hyjek

VILLAGE TRUSTEES

Bob Brandt, Chairman of Trustees Julie Nicoll

Justin Hyjek, Vice Chair

PLANNING COMMISSION
Terry Carter  , Chairman Jean Strong
Judy Pullinen Ted Stryhas

Ryan Silvestri



8.

9.

Town of Ludlow
Department Head Reports

November 2024

. Ambulance — Stephanie Grover/Mary Mancino

Building & Grounds — Kevin MacPherson (Available at meeting)

. Fire Department — Chief Ben Whalen

Highway — Ron Tarbell

. Listers — Jeannie Stasz

Parks & Recreation — Nick Miele
Planning/Zoning — Rosemary Goings
Police — Chief Jeffrey Billings (Available at meeting)

Town Clerk/Treasurer — Ulla Cook

10.Transfer Station — Pattie Potter



Ludisw
vT

'\4/\ LUDLOW AMBULANCE SERVICE, PO. BOX 359, LUDLOW, VERMONT 0514-0359

(802) 228-2880 FAX (802)228-5505

Ludlow Ambulance Service
November 1, 2024- November 27, 2024

Total Calls
November 2024: 73 Calls November 2023- 49 Calls
Ambulance Calls November 2024
» Ludlow 23
« Cavendish 9
+ Proctorsville
¢ Plymouth
«  Mount Holly 12
¢ Chester
»  Shrewsbury
¢ Andover
¢ Reading
e Weston
* Londonderry

+ Springfield Hospital/ Springfield
+ Rutland Hospital
»  Mount Ascutney Hospital
»  Mutual Aid received
Transport
Springfield Hospital 16
Dartmouth
Landing Zone
Mount Ascutney
Rutland Hospital 13
No Transports/Stand by Coverage 20
Gill Home .
Cheshire Medical Center
Home
Valley Regional Hospital



Ludlow
7

44/\ LUDLOW AMBULANCE SERVICE, PO. BOX 359, LUDLOW, VERMONT 0514-0359

(802) 228-2880 FAX (802) 228-5505

LAS Updates:

We have recently filled one of our full-time employee spots with an intemal candidate. Dylan Chambers,
who is in an Advanced EMT class will be finishing up his ALS certifications early December. We look
forward to Dylan joining our full-time team, congrats!

Our Chief, Stephanie Grover, will be returning from matemity leave December 2™ join us in a warm
welcome in having her back in house!

We sent two of our Paramedics, Mary T. Mancino and Asher Clark to a skills day that was hosted by
UVM’s Health Net. Providers got to practice hands on skills and leam invasive procedures.

We are still dealing with an IV shortage due to the Baxter plant damage from recent hurricanes. Springfield
hospitals materials management has begun to distribute small quantities as needed to our service. We
anticipate this shortage to go on into the new year.

We joined Proctorsville Fire Department for a joint training at the end of October that involved vehicle
extrication, We treated this as a real-life simulation with multiple patients that were extricated and treated.
Trainings like this are imperative to both organizations so we can work cohesively when a real scenario
arises.

We are in the middle of teaching a Vermont First Responder course that Proctorsville Fire Department is
helping us host. The class will be wrapping up at the end of next week. First responders are essential in
assisting EMS agencies all over the state. We want to thank Sue Portier who helped get this class up and
running!

We have hired three new EMT’s ahead of our busy season:

o Kaitlin Mitchell, who is also a member of Okemo Ski Patrol, Kait has a background in
microbiology and a PhD in cellular pathology. Kait completed her EMT this past summer while
in Pennsylvania.

o Tory Cosgrove, a member of Proctorsville Fire Dept, Tory has experience as an EMR, LNA,
VEFR and she just completed her EMT this past summer as well.

o Jacob Ives, who is currently an EMT and a student at UVM completing his undergrad. Jacob has
experience working with Lamoille Ambulance, as well as Missisquoi Valley Rescue.

Mary T. Mancino
Acting EMS Chief/Training Captain
udlow Ambulance Service

-



Ludlow Vermont Fire Department

P.O. Box 359, Ludlow, Vermont 05149
E-mail: BwhalenLFD@Gmail.com

To: Selectboard

From: Ben Whalen, Fire Chief

Date: November 27th, 2024

Subject: Monthly Report — November

Since the September report Ludlow Fire Department responded to 31 calls for service. The type of
incidents are broken down below:

Incident Type Number of Incidents

Carbon Monoxide Alarm
Medical Assist

M/A Cover Assignment
Smoke Alarm

illegal Burning

Structure Fire (Mutual Aid)
Motor Vehicle Accident
Hazardous Condition
Motor Vehicle Accident Extrication
Mutual Aid Fire Alarm
Electricalfire

Brush Fire

B R R NN GG WS OO

Total: 31

It has certainly been a busy month on all fronts and we have run a wide array of varying call
types. Our members were actively involved in several mutual aid structure fires and have
been doing great work protecting our community. For the most part the public did a good
job of adhering to the burn ban and those who did not received education and were polite
and receptive. The large burn pile/brush fire that occurred on 100 N is believed to have
started from a previous fire which was buried some time ago. The dry conditions and high
winds finally allowed it to burn into the debris on top of-it. The burn ban has been lifted the
Fire Warden and | will continue to evaluate allowing burning of debris.



LUDLOW HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT

Monthly Report - November
2024

e Winter Highway maint.

e Transfer Station
o Crushed & Load Dumpsters
= Demo
s cardboard
o Turning compost
e Equipment Maintenance
o Police Cruiser Maintenance
o Ambulance Maintenance
o Maintenance on highway trucks/ equipment
e Trees &Brush
o Ongoing Clean-up from Storm Damage

e Other/Miscellaneous

- o FEMA documentation
Cold patching on going
Grading Roads
Apply Gravel/Surpac on Gravel Rds.
Work on cleaning up Pit (Flood debris)
Ditching/Replace Culvert N.Hill Cross Rd.
Start work on FY 26 Budget
Prep Trucks/Equipment for Winter
Shoulders East Hill Rd.
Ditching Buttermilk Falls Rd.
Culvert’s patched N. Hill
Hot mix Depot St. Bridge
Install Pad for Drill rig (Site 1 Dam)
Dig test pits Site 1&2 Dams
Stockpile Surpac

0 OO0 0OO0OOODO0ODO0OOOOO0OO

Respectively submitted,

Ronald Tarbell
Highway Foreman



A\

TOWN OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF LISTERS AND ASSESSOR
P.0.BOX 359
LUDLOW, VT. 05149
PHONE 802-228-7206
listers@ludiow.vt.us

LISTERS AND ASSESSOR’S OFFICE
November 2024 MONTHLY REPORT

Activity in the office has slowed down, fewer phone calls and fewer walk-ins.
Property transfers and building permits have also decreased, which is normal at
this time of the year.

Jeannie continues to help out with the filing in the Municipal office.

Ryan had an accident with a chainsaw and will not be in the office for a couple
of weeks, however, he can be reached by email or cell phone.

Respectfully submitted,

L_/J M(Au,é A L tas

s |

/ -\
___,Iéannie Stasz/Lister



Ludlow Parks and Recreation Directors Report
November 27, 2024

Youth Basketball: The registration forms were released and sign ups have been trickling in this
month filling out teams for the % and 5/6 boys. The 5/6 girls and % girls’ numbers are quite low
and we are looking to combine with Cavendish to bolster our numbers and possibly have just one
girls’ team. Practices are scheduled to start the first week of December for the older groups.

Community Center Activities: This past November we had some huge participation in Adult
Volleyball, with participation numbers between 11 and 18 people. It is really exciting to see
adult athletes excited to participate in these activities. As we begin to enter December, we will
also incorporate indoor soccer in the Ludlow Elementary gym on Sundays from 12 to 3 pm. I
know many soccer players who are excited to start playing this winter. Also, there is a dedicated
group of community members that play pickleball three times a week.

Turkey Trot: This year the Ludlow Parks and Recreation Department will host a Turkey Trot
on Thanksgiving to benefit Black River Good Neighbors. I am expecting another good turnout
and am hopeful that we have good weather.

Winter Activities: This year the Ludlow Parks and Recreation Department is continuing to
expand on our Christmas light display which should be ready to go in a few days. We are adding
a few more songs as well as some new props to enhance the show.

Grants: This past month we have been working hard to fill out the Land and Water
Conservation Fund Grant Pre application, by attending webinars, finalizing the project budget
and doing research to provide as much information as possible. As the deadline approaches, we
feel more confident with our application.

Community Center Fitness Room: This past month we have seen a big increase in fitness
memberships as the temperature starts to cool down. The increase in membership really shows
that community members appreciate this amenity that we offer and certainly would like us to
improve it by replacing some worn down equipment from the increased use.

Ludlow’s 4 of July Fireworks: We have started the planning process for the 4% of July
fireworks early this year because there are limited spots available to secure a display. I have
already started lining up vendors, portable restrooms and working with Okemo to improve the
event. I am currently, waiting on a contract from Northstar fireworks to keep the process moving
forward.

Thanks,

Nick Miele, Director of Parks and Recreation




MONTHLY REPORT
Planning & Zoning Department
September 2024

Zoning Applications - 5
Zoning Applications Granted - 5
Zoning Applications Denied - 0

Subdivisions - 0

Access - 1

Bianchis - 3

DRB Applications - 4
Certificate of Occupancy - 3
Site Inspections - 10

New E911 Addresses - 2

- The five Granted Zoning Applications were for: porch & deck extensions, a hot tub platform
remove & replace deck, an install of a pre-made shed, a new 2 story modular home, and to remove
and replace a portion of an existing residence. All are residences (SFR).

- There were two Subdivisions, one for a Lot Line Adjustment, and the other was a residential 2 lot
Subdivision.

- The one Access Permit Granted was for a newly proposed duplex.
- The three Bianchis were all for SF residences.

- DRB Applications include: a 12x40 addition to a building in the Industrial District, to combine 2 units
at The Mill, a Lot Line Adjustment, and a 2 Lot Subdivision.

- The three COs are for: a new home construction, a new rear deck & front porch, and a Black River
Mobile Home Flood Hazard Review Compliance.

- Site inspections include: three set-back verifications - a new deck and 2 new SF residences, two
COs - to remove and replace a deck and add a front porch and the Flood Hazard Review of Black
River Mobile Home, one to verify the allocation removal of a bedroom, two Building Violations - too
many non-conforming units on a property, and building without a permit, and two progress checks - a
new garage with connector, and the new silo at Green Mountain Sugar House.

- Two new E911 Address notifications have gone to those homeowners, et al.

- Due to an increased amount of incoming work related tasks, hiring temporary help is being
considered.

Rocemary boings



MONTHLY REPORT
Planning & Zoning Department
October 2024

Zoning Applications - 7
Zoning Applications Granted - 6
Zoning Applications Denied - 1

Subdivisions - 0

Access -2

Bianchis - 7

DRB Applications - 1
Certificate of Occupancy - 5
Site Inspections - 3

New E911 Addresses -2

- The six Granted Zoning Applications include: a 3 season porch, a new rear deck bump-out for a new
fireplace, a new deck & porch, new deck, 2 “floating” decks, and extending a rear deck for a hot tub.
All are for SF residences.

- One Zoning Application for a hot tub deck was denied because the setbacks were not met.

- Access Permits were both for new single family residences.

- All seven Bianchis were for residential properties.

- There was one DRB Application for an 8 Lot Subdivision.

- The five COs were for an addition to a single family residence, the addition of a mud room and
3-season room, the addition of a mud room and a 2-car garage, a post & beam carriage bam, an
addition to an existing garage, and the Eight oh Brew Flood Hazard Review compliance.

One CO was Denied for having too many kitchens and bathrooms in one SF residence.

- Three site inspections included setback verifications, to photograph Shaws project, and one for a
Building Permit CO.

- Two new E911 Address notifications have gone to those homeowners, et al.

- Charlotte Galley has begun work in the Planning & Zoning Department as a temporary, part time
employee. She is working 20-24 hours per week.

Rosemary Goings



MONTHLY REPORT
Planning & Zoning Department
November 2024

Zoning Applications - 3
Zoning Applications Granted - 2
Zoning Applications Denied -

Subdivisions - 1

Access -0

Bianchis - 2

DRB Applications - 1

Certificate of Occupancy - 3 (one denied)
Site Inspections - 6

New E911 Addresses -6

- The Zoning Applications are for an 8x8 laundry room addition, a wastewater allocation, and a
teardown and replacement of garage and breezeway.

- 1 Subdivision/Boundary Line Adjustment

- The two Granted Building Permit Applications include an addition to add a laundry room to the 1st
floor, and converting an existing room into a 4th bedroom.

- The two Bianchis were one each, commercial and condo.

- DRB was for a Lot Subdivision.

- Three COs are for a breezeway & deck, addition of a 1 bedroom allocation, and a residential
structure addition. The denied CO was as a result of having too many kitchens in a new SF
residential build.

- The Site Inspections include 54 Depot St - Front porch replacement, 155 South Hill - New Home,
41 Upper Crossroad (OkemoVillage) - New Roof & Siding, 464 West Hill - Deck Replacement, 232
Farm Ridge Rd - New Pool and Deck, 81 Andover St - (Progress Report) construction occurring prior
to permit issued.

- Six new E911 Address notifications have gone to those homeowners, et al.

Rocemary Goings



To:  Select Board Members
From: UllaP. Cook, Clerk/Treasurer
Subject: November
Date: November 21, 2024

The following is a breakdown of the activity in the Town Clerk and Treasurers
office for the month of November:

Bank Statements for both Town and Village.

Recording in book 473. We now have 399 books or 239,400 pages scanned and
linked. This means we now have over 40 years in the computer. We are
encouraging the title searchers to use the computer versus the card file. We also
now have all the land record books available on line from the home page.
Property transfer tax returns are scanned from 1968 to present. Pam is now
working on putting the Lien Books and scanning into the NEMRC System.

General Election was held on November 5. We had 1219 votes cast and 738 were
absentee.

Collected second quarter property taxes. We have $59,474 due on the first quarter
and $404,197 on the second quarter. We have had payments made in the amount
of $663,658 on the third and fourth quarters.

Sent letters to over 300 properties who have forgotten to pay.
Received 110 documents for recording during November which includes warranty
deeds, quit claim deeds, mortgages, mortgage discharges, bianchi, certificate of

occupancy, liens and miscellaneous permits. Also included in the documents for
recording are 24 property transfers totaling $9,345,00.00.

, >



11/21/24 Town of Ludlow General Ledger Page 1 of 2

04:43 pm Current ¥Yr Pd: 5 - Budget Status Report UCook
General Fund
Account Actual
Budget Actual % of Budget
GENERAL 32,531,551.20 31,960,203.19 98.24%
ADMINISTRATION 241,593.00 234,669.59 97.13%
BUILDING AND GROUNDS 13,300.00 5,740.00 43.16%
CEMETERY 39,250.00 7.252.50 18.48%
TOWN CLERK 78,250.00 30,515.95 39.00%
TOWN TREASURER 147,500.00 106,647.64 72.30%
INTEREST/DIVIDEND 44,500.00 22,120.34 49.71%
AMBULANCE 815,600.00 241,906.86 29.66%
FIRE 2,500.00 300.00 12.00%
COMMUNITY CENTER 2,300.00 570.00 24.78%
MUNICIPAL TRANSIT 0.00 0.00 0.00%
High School Building 6,500.00 1,525.00 23.46%
HIGHWAY 151,750.00 98,471.14 64.89%
INSURANCE 6,500.00 10,853.12 166.97%
LISTERS 3,500.00 0.00 0.00%
PLANNING 59,500.00 27,007.30 45,.39%
POLICE 60,480.00 30,184.86 49.91%
RECREATION 22,800.00 16,638.58 72.98%
FLOOD 0.00 1,646,022.11 100.00%
SOLID WASTE 187,750.00 81,334.29 43.32%
CAPITAL 275,000.00 1,260,532.85 458.38%
Total Revenues 34,690,124.20 35,782,495.32 103,15%
ADMINISTRATION 314,870.00 331,418.14 105.26%
BUILDING AND GROUNDS 236,600.00 82,658.05 34.94%
TOWN CLERK/TREASURER 262,700.00 104,144.33 39.64%
COMMUNITY CENTER OP 94,740.00 38,464.86 40.60%
PLANNING SERVICES 209,425.00 69,588.85 33.23%
LISTERS 82,635.00 33,002.59 39.94%
POLICE DEPARTMENT 1,337,320.00 492,047.19 36.79%
AMBULANCE 824,400.00 440,710.97 53.46%
FIRE DEPARTMENT 293,350.00 138,923.59 47.36%
MUN. TRANSIT SYS 0.00 0.00 0.00%
HIGH SCHOOL BUILDING 97,425.00 23,671.68 24.30%
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 1,164,900.00 529,826.60 45.48%
SOLID WASTE 279,850.00 157,082.14 56.13%
DISPOSAL 163,950.00 76,624.30 46.74%
CEMETERY DEPARTMENT 127,700.00 81,274.58 63.64%
RECREATION DEPARTMENT 216,411.00 100,040.10 46.23%
FLOOD 0.00 2,040,866.74 100.00%
INTER GOVERNMENTAL 144,000.00 89,549.12 62.19%
APPROPRIATIONS 173,587.00 75,991.61 43.78%
INSURANCE 196,000.00 132,690.14 67.70%
VOTED ARTICLES 229,750.00 0.00 0.00%
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS 27,017,259.84 12,474,037.00 46.17%
DEBT MANAGEMENT 380,529.00 294,572.76 77.41%
CAPITAL 243,000.00 197,918.74 81.45%
Total Expenditures 34,090,401.84 18,005,104.08 52.82%



11/21/24
04:43 pnm

Total General Fund

Total All Punds

Town of Ludlow General Ledger Page 2 of 2
Current Yr Pd: 5 - Budget Status Report UCook
General Fund

Actual
Budget Actual % of Budget

599,722.36 17,777,391.24

599,722.36 17,777,391.24



LUDLOW TRANSFER STATION
November 2024 REPORT

Business was very busy this month.

The following containers were hauled out this month:

# Containers Container Size Content
4 40-yard MSW
4 40-yard C&D
1 30-yard Glass
2 30-yard Metal
1 40-yard Z Sort Recyclables
1 30-yard Cardboard Bales

1420 1bs. 1bs. Compost

0 30-yard Tires

Covered Pallets = 3; Covered Gaylords = 4; Non-
Covered Pallet = 1; Non-Covered Gaylords = 2

Broken Covered Gaylord =0 E-Waste
2 Bulbs Bulbs & Ballasts
31 units Freon
0 units Propane Tanks
7 boxes Batteries (Alkaline & Haz)
10 gallons cooking oil / gallons waste oil Waste Oil — Cooking Oil

.
Swap Shop continues to be busy with items coming and going.

Bathroom project has begun! A big thank you to Trevor Benson.

I would like to thank the Highway Department as always for crushing our dumpsters for
removal. As well as thank them for dropping sand and salt during the freezing rain storm this
month.

,%glir;l\ext mgnth,

Patti Potter
Transfer Station Manager



Vision Zero Resolution for the Town of Ludlow

WHEREAS, the safety of all road users moving within and through the Town of Ludlow is
our utmost priority, and no one should die or be seriously injured while traveling on our
public roads and streets; and,

WHEREAS, as part of the 2021 Federal Transportation Bill, Infrastructure Investment and
Jobs Act (I1JA), there is over $1B of roadway safety funding available in the form of Safe
Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) grants and to be an eligible applicant for this new safety
funding, a district MUST have an eligible Action Plan in place; and

WHEREAS, the Mount Ascutney Regional Commission received an SS4A grant to create an
eligible Comprehensive Safety Action Plan; and

WHEREAS, Vision Zero is the concept that traffic deaths and serious injuries on our
roadways are unacceptable and a strategy aimed at eliminating all traffic fatalities and
severe injuries suffered by all road users while increasing safe, healthy, equitable mobility
for all; and

WHEREAS, streets and transportation systems have traditionally been designed primarily
to move cars efficiently, and Vision Zero supports a paradigm shift by designing streets
and transportation systems to move all people safely, including people of all ages and
abilities, pedestrians, bicyclists, public transit users, scooter riders, and motorcyclists, as
well as drivers and passengers of motor vehicles; and

WHEREAS, Vision Zero recognizes that people will sometimes make mistakes, so the road
system and related policies should be designed to ensure that those inevitable mistakes
do not result in severe injuries or fatalities; therefore, transportation planners and
engineers and policymakers are expected to improve the resiliency of the roadway, the
roadway environment, policies, and other related systems to lessen the severity of
crashes; and

WHEREAS, 31 people in the Mount Ascutney Region lost their lives to traffic deaths in the
last 10 years and there were 131 serious injuries, and traffic crashes are among the
leading cause of deaths in the United States; and

WHEREAS, making streets safer for all people using all modes of transportation will
encourage people to travel on foot, by bicycle, and by public transit, which supports a
healthier, more active lifestyle and reduces environmental pollution; and



WHEREAS, successful Vision Zero programs are a result of both a complete government
approach (i.e., interdepartmental, coordinated initiatives) and community support of
Vision Zero objectives and action plans; and

WHEREAS, Vision Zero resolutions have been adopted by many jurisdictions across the
United States; and

WHEREAS, the Mount Ascutney Regional Commission’s Board of Commissioners adopted
a Vision Zero Resolution and recommends the Town of Ludlow pass this Resolution;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Select Board for the Town of Ludlow, State of
Vermont, as follows:

The Town of Ludlow adopts the goal of zero traffic deaths and serious injuries, stating
that no loss of life or serious injury is acceptable on our streets.

The Town of Ludlow adopts the goal of eliminating traffic deaths and serious injuries by
2040, and endorses Vision Zero as a comprehensive and holistic approach to achieving
this goal.

The Town of Ludlow adopts the goal of eliminating racial profiling and inequitable
enforcement of traffic violations.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Select Board for the Town of Ludlow, State of Vermont, on

, by the following vote:

Select Board Chair Select Board Member

Select Board Member Select Board Member

Select Board Member



-

LS iipoaieies B L L Rt i E A e L ]
Regional Commission
Vision Zero Resolution for Mount Ascutney Regional Commission

WHEREAS, the safety of all road users moving within and through the Mount Ascutney region is
our utmost priority, and no one should die or be seriously injured while traveling on our public

roads and streets; and,

WHEREAS, as part of the 2021 Federal Transportation Bill, Infrastructure Investment and Jobs
Act (I1JA), there is over $1B of roadway safety funding available in the form of Safe Streets and
Roads for All {SS4A) grants and to be an eligible applicant for this new safety funding, a district

MUST have an eligible Action Plan in place; and

WHEREAS, the Mount Ascutney Regional Commission received an SS4A grant to create an

eligible Comprehensive Safety Action Plan; and

WHEREAS, Vision Zero is the concept that traffic deaths and serious injuries on our roadways
are unacceptable and a strategy aimed at eliminating all traffic fatalities and severe injuries

suffered by all road users while increasing safe, healthy, equitable mobility for all; and

WHEREAS, streets and transportation systems have traditionally been designed primarily to
move cars efficiently, and Vision Zero supports a paradigm shift by designing streets and
transportation systems to move all people safely, including people of all ages and abilities,
pedestrians, bicyclists, public transit users, scooter riders, and motorcyclists, as well as drivers

and passengers of motor vehicles; and

WHEREAS, Vision Zero recognizes that people will sometimes make mistakes, so the road system

and related policies should be designed to ensure that those inevitable mistakes do not result

P.O. Box 320
38 Ascuiney Park Road
Ascutney, VT 05030
802.674.9201
www.marcvt.org



in severe injuries or fatalities; therefore, transportation planners and engineers and
policymakers are expected to improve the resiliency of the roadway, the roadway environment,

policies, and other related systems to lessen the severity of crashes; and

WHEREAS, 31 people in the Mount Ascutney Region lost their lives to traffic deaths in the last
10 years and there were 131 serious injuries, and traffic crashes are among the leading cause of

deaths in the United States; and

WHEREAS, making streets safer for all people using all modes of transportation will encourage
people to travel on foot, by bicycle, and by public transit, which supports a healthier, more active

lifestyle and reduces environmental pollution; and

WHEREAS, successful Vision Zero programs are a result of both a complete government
approach {(i.e., interdepartmental, coordinated initiatives) and community support of Vision

Zero objectives and action plans; and

WHEREAS, Vision Zero resolutions have been adopted by many jurisdictions across the United

States; and

WHEREAS, the duly-adopted Regional Transportation Plan for the Commission includes a goal

to “strive to achieve a transportation system free from fatalities and serious injuries;” and

WHEREAS, the Mount Ascutney Regional Commission’s Transportation Advisory Committee

recommends that the Board of Commissioners pass this Resolution;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners for the Mount Ascutney

Regional Commission, State of Vermont, as follows:

The Mount Ascutney Regional Commission adopts the goal of zero traffic deaths and serious

injuries, stating that no loss of life or serious injury is acceptable on our streets.



The Mount Ascutney Regional Commission adopts the goal of eliminating traffic deaths and
serious injuries by 2040, and endorses Vision Zero as a comprehensive and holistic approach to

achieving this goal.

The Mount Ascutney Regional Commission adopts the goal of eliminating racial profiling and

inequitable enforcement of traffic violations.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners for the Mount Ascutney Regional
Commission, State of Vermont, on November 18, 2024, by the following vote: ;L - [ _ ﬁ

?

T s 2 (2o S “(
//,Jﬁf// f"-«—f-'r S r.@'-f'fic,;”f;;‘ ;%/(X«;’- Cat
Town of Andover ~ Town of Reading
o [h 4/
ﬁ?@a;_;;/’ﬁ/'ﬁcw 2L | Pl Crssdedl
Town of Baltimore Town of Springfield
Town of Cavendish Town of West Windsor
/
Q | f [/ 1{ r"'/ 0] 4 /
\,_ ,a'f A Kf A 1_:;’ ,y?éf- // L A
Town of Chester Town of Weathersfield

P

Town of Ludiow Town of Windso

P, ~7 P f:/’)
S A
- /



	Select Board Agenda December 2, 2024.pdf
	SKM_C550i24112716380.pdf

